Planning Board Meeting Minutes
March 10, 2022

Upon due notice, a regular meeting of the Village of Minoa Planning Board, was held on
Thursday, March 10, 2022 at 7:00 p.m. at the Municipal Building, 240 North Main Street,
Minoa, New York.

Present: Chairman Dan Delucia, Planning Board Members: Alan Archer, Gail Greiner,
John Jarmacz, Attorney Courtney Hills, Secretary Barbara Sturick, and DPW
Superintendent Thomas Petterelli.

Absent: Sheri Hayner
Also Present: Jeremiah Butchko, Brian Madigan and Mark Potter.

Chairman Dan DeLucia opened the regular meeting at 7:00 p.m., stating The Village of
Minoa Board of Trustees has referred to the Planning Board, for review and
recommendations, an application submitted by from RPNY Solar 4, LLC, requesting a
zone change from Residential R-A1 to PDD (Planned Development District) for the
development of an approximately 13 acre, 3 MW Community Solar Project located
on tax parcel #005.-10-01.0., 5986 Clemons Road.

The Village Board declared Lead Agency, reviewed concept plan and outline for the
proposed Planned Development District (PDD) and delegated the Planning Board to
be responsible for ensuring the general concept plan and outline of the proposed
project is further refined and capable of being properly implemented.

Chairman DeLucia turn the floor over to Renewable Properties to present proposed
project.

Project Manager Brian Madigan and Engineer Mark Potter presented a PowerPoint
presentation, a true copy of which is attached hereto as Schedule “A”.

Public Comments as follows:
Resident Jeremiah Butchko of 240 S. Main St:

e Mr. Butchko questioned whether the 10% discount on National Grid billing for
village residents is calculated based on usage and delivery charges. Per Mr.
Madigan the 10% is based on the entire bill, which would include both usage and
delivery charges, on annual basis depending on season and that the estimate was
specifically based on the local area.

e Mr. Butchko question the note in presentation if there would be long or short term
employment? Mr. Madigan advised there would be no long-term employment at the
facility, but rather they would provide regular maintenance six times year, once or
twice a year for panel cleaning and periodic vegetation maintenance.
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e Mr. Butchko inquired as to whether public bidding or an RFP process would be
utilized by the company for the certified electricians and other contractors for
construction of the project. The applicants had little information on this subject.

¢ Mr. Butchko questioned how the project would affect property taxes? There was a
discussion between the applicants and the Planning Board regarding the taxable
status of the infrastructure and the possibility of a PILOT agreement.

¢ Mr. Butchko asked if Renewable Properties was going to invest in community
projects or possible investment such as enough solar to power village properties
WWTP, Municipal Building, DPW? Mr. Madigan deferred to Planning Board for
further direction on that comment. Chairman DeLucia noted comment and
suggestion.

A discussion among the Planning Board members ensured and the following questions and
concerns were presented:

¢ The Planning Board requested an explanation of how Renewable Properties would
work with Good Energy, as the Village’s as Community Choice Aggregator direct
supplier.

e The Planning Board questioned whether the current delivery service provider,
National Grid, would be able to penalize residents for opting to use Renewable
Properties. Mr. Madigan advised PSE Regulations would prevent National Grid
from doing that, that but he obtain additional information for the Planning Board.

¢ The Planning Board requested a more detailed description of the agricultural style
fence to be used. Mr. Madigan directed the Planning Board to slide 12 on the
PowerPoint presentation for a visual and advised the fence would encompass the
entire project and that evergreen trees would be placed in front of the fence.

¢ The Planning Board questioned whether the project is consistent with Village of
Minoa 2015 Climate Action Plan.

¢ The Planning Board requested a more detailed Decommissioning Plan, noting the
plans only indicate one is forthcoming.

e The Planning Board questioned whether the electrical work would be exposed. Mr.
Madigan advised all electric components would be underground.

e The Planning Board requested more information and clarification as to a PILOT
program due to the infrastructure being tax exempt in the Village of Minoa.

e The Planning Board requested clarification on maintenance cycle.

e The Planning Board requested the Plans to be updated to specifically reflex the
Village of Minoa project, noting the current plans identify other municipalities
(typos). Current plans refers to: C8 - bottom gate as Broome County, attachment A
reference NYSEG rather than National Grid, C10 — Solar Track Array Post details
above ground are noted in feet and inches and the Post below ground are noted in
inches.

¢ The Planning Board inquired whether Renewable Properties were open to setback
changes, style of fencing changes and are they open to considering Planning Board
recommendations. Mark Potter stated the set backs are for electrical components
and that these are preliminary plans for review.

¢ The Planning Board discussed a temporary emergency access road during

v:\zba\planning board meeting minutes\site plan application - clemons rd solar\3.10.22 min plan bd clemons rd review recommendation mtg - revised.doc



construction on Baird St.

e Attorney Hills stated the Planning Board has 180 days to review site plan per LL #1-
2011 procedure section Code § 160-13.1(E)(2) Project review criteria before
considerations and recommendations be provided to village board.

e Here to attach is a letter emailed to Project Manager Brian Madigan on 3.11.2022
via email requesting further documentation needed by the Planning Board for
review along with the LJIR Engineering letter dated March 3, 2022 here attached to
as schedule “B”.

DPW Superintendent Thomas Petterelli:
e Stated his concern was whether the development would compromise any flow of
water from Baird St Ponds to the Creek. Brian stated there would be no changes
altering water flows and that would remain the same.

A Motion made by John Jarmacz and seconded by Alan Archer to close the Planning
Board Meeting at 9:05 pm. All in favor. Motion carried.

Secretary ] /
_),_.f-"“"'”' 7{_”.__ [ »
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VILLAGE OF MINOA

240 N. MAIN STREET « MINOA « NEW YORK 13116

John H. Champagne, Deputy Mayor
John M. Abbott, Trustee

Eric S. Christensen, Trustee

Bobby Schepp, Trustee

Lisa L. DeVona, Clerk-Treasurer
Law Offices of Courtney M. Hills PC

William F. Brazill, Mayor
wbrazill@villageofminoa.com
Office: (315) 656-3100

Fax:  (315) 656-0825
www.villageofminoa.com

March 11, 2022

Renewable Properties

Brian Madigan, AICP Via: bmadigan@renewprop.com
879 Sanchez St

San Fransisco, CA 94114

RE: Village of Minoa Planning Board PDD Zone Change — RPNY Solar 4, LLC

Brian:

Per your presentation at the regular Planning Board meeting Thursday March 10, 2022 in
reference to Renewable Properties requesting a zone change from Residential R-A1 to PDD
(Planned Development District) for the development of an approximately 13 acre, 3 MW
Community Solar Project located on tax parcel #005.-10-01.0., 5986 Clemons Road.

The following documents are requested to be submitted for Planning Board review:

e The Decommission Plan.

e All preliminary comments and question in Village Engineering Alex J. Wisniewski letter date
March 3, 2022 hereto attached schedule “A” be addressed

e Metes and Bound Survey submittal

e Updated Site Plan with corrected descriptions specifically for the Village of Minoa

¢ Address Pilot Agreement

Please provided all requested documentation by March 24, 2022 via email to Planning Board
Secretary Barbara Sturick at bsturick@villageofminoa.com

\T < you, M
\ \
Barbara Sturick_— )

%ﬁtaw—P ing

ScWhedule QB”
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L.J.R. ENGINEERING, P.C.
ELTA BUSINESS PARK

8394 ELTA DRIVE

CICERO, NEW YORK 13039

March 3, 2022

Ms. Barbara Sturick
Village of Minoa
240 N. Main Street
Minoa, NY 13116

Re: RPNY Solar 4, LLC Planned Development District (PDD) Application
File No. 331.014

Dear Barb:

At your request, | have reviewed the documents you’ve provided in regard to the above referenced
project application. | offer the following preliminary comments/questions for the Village’s consideration:

General Comments:

1. The Village Code does not specifically address this proposed use. As such, the Village may want
to consider updating the Code to include such provisions prior to moving forward with this
application. If not, | would encourage the Village to engage a specialized consultant to assist with
review of the project.

2. As part of my review, I've familiarized myself with other local municipal codes that do specifically
address solar energy installations. I've enclosed examples from the Town of Manlius Code and
Town of Cicero Code for your reference. I've used these codes as reference and as the basis of
my review of this application. | would recommend that the required items outlined in these
example codes (or similar) be included as part of this application.

3. Will the project be tax-exempt? It is my understanding that this type of installation is considered
tax-exempt, but New York State does allow municipalities to demand payment-in-lieu-of-tax
(PILOT) agreements. The Town of Clay recently unknowingly encountered this situation before
they issued a moratorium on solar farm applications. I've enclosed a 06/17/21 article from
Syracuse.com that may be of interest.

4. Has the applicant contacted National Grid in regard to the project? s National Grid agreeable to
the proposed connection to their system? | recommend that the applicant provide an
interconnection agreement with National Grid.

5. | recommend that a Decommissioning Plan, a cost estimate for implementation of the
Decommissioning Plan, and related security (bond or otherwise) be required for the project.

6. | recommend that the applicant provide photographic simulations of the project from various
vantage points.

7. | recommend that the applicant provide preliminary equipment specification sheets of solar
panels, significant components, mounting systems, and inverters that are to be installed.

‘8. Are any battery installations proposed as part of the project?

1

PHONE: 315-699-9533 T EAX: 315-699-9642 E-MAIL: MAIL@LJRENG.COM
SENEAGNETRT ok Bl leavak




Application Form dated 12/29/21:

1.
2.

3,

4,

A survey is required as part of the application.
Is any site signage proposed?

Is any site lighting proposed?

Owner signature is required.

Full Environmental Assessment Form dated 12/22/21.

1.

2,

Page 2, item B.d. Other local agencies - The Town of Manlius should be included for driveway
permit approval (| believe Clemons Road is under Town of Manlius jurisdiction).

Page 4, item D.2.b.i. - The project will require NYSDEC wetlands permitting. Evidence of the
issued permit should be provided to the Village prior to construction commencement.

Page 5, item D.2.b.ii. - The project will require a NYSDEC SPDES permit. The applicant must supply
a Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) and related items for Village review prior to the
Village's execution of the MS4 SWPPP Acceptance Form.

Page 13, item E.3.f. Site is located within an area of potential archaeological significance.
Applicant should provide SHPO determination to Village.

General comment: Because the project abuts the Town of Manlius and will also require a
driveway permit from the Town of Manlius, | recommend that the Village conduct a coordinated
SEQR review with the Town of Manlius.

Proposed PDD Qutline:

A,

Page 2, Table 2: PDD Propos'ed Setbacks — | recommend that the proposed minimum front, side,
and rear setbacks be increased to 100 feet and maximum structure height limit be reduced to 15
feet. '

. Page 2 and Page 3~ The outline makes multiple referenced to NYSEG. These references should

be corrected to National Grid. _

Page 2, Project Purpose and Need — The outline suggeststhat energy generated from this project
“will directly benefit customers enrolled in the Project Owner’s Community Solar Program.” Can
the applicant elaborate on these benefits? Will Village residents see any benefit in their electric
service rates as a result of the project?

Preliminary Site Plans dated 12/30/21:

1.

Z,

A 7’ high perimeter fence is proposed. The applicant should provide detail(s) of the proposed
fencing. | would recommend that a privacy fence (to provide a visual buffer) be installed along
the Baird Street and Clemons Road frontages.

| question the location of the proposed driveway. As proposed, the driveway is extremely close
the Baird Street/Clemons Road intersection. Also, the steep. grade (>10%) of the proposed
driveway may be challenging for delivery/construction vehicle access. Again, | believe Clemons
Road is under the jurisdiction of the Town of Manlius and accordingly, the applicant should consult
with the Town in regard to the proposed driveway. Perhaps construction access could be shifted
to the bottom of the hill and/or the proposed driveway should be aligned with Maze Path?

The plans identify a proposed grass filter strip just downslope fromthe proposed equipment pad.
What is the purpose of this filter strip?



4. 1recommend that the applicant provide a photographic example of what the proposed entrance
and related utility poles/transformers will look like. Based on other projects I've seen locally, the
Village may want to give more consideration to the aesthetics of the entry point.

5. Isany site lighting or site signage proposed?

I hope these comments, questions, and suggestions are helpful. Please do not hesitate to contact me
should you like to discuss further or if you require further assistance.

Sincerely,

Alex J. Wisniewigki, P.E.
President, LIR Engineering, P.C.

Enc.



